

**CHAPTER 30. MEDICAL PROVIDERS-FEE FOR SERVICE**  
**SUBCHAPTER 3. GENERAL PROVIDER POLICIES**  
**PART 4. EARLY AND PERIODIC SCREENING, DIAGNOSIS**  
**AND TREATMENT (EPSDT) PROGRAM/CHILD HEALTH SERVICES**

**317:30-3-65.4. Screening components**

Comprehensive EPSDT screenings are performed by, or under the supervision of, a SoonerCare physician or other SoonerCare practitioner. SoonerCare physicians are defined as all licensed ~~medical~~ allopathic and osteopathic physicians in accordance with the rules and regulations covering OHCA's SoonerCare program. Other SoonerCare practitioners are defined as all contracted physician assistants and advanced practice nurses in accordance with the rules and regulations covering the OHCA's ~~medical-care~~ SoonerCare program. At a minimum, screening examinations must include, but not be limited to, the following components:

(1) **Comprehensive health and developmental history.** Health and developmental history information may be obtained from the parent or other responsible adult who is familiar with the child's history and include an assessment of both physical and mental health development. Coupled with the physical examination, this includes:

(A) **Developmental assessment.** Developmental assessment includes a range of activities to determine whether an individual's developmental processes fall within a normal range of achievement according to age group and cultural background. Screening for development assessment is a part of every routine, initial and periodic screening examination. Acquire information on the child's usual functioning as reported by the child, teacher, health professional or other familiar person. Review developmental progress as a component of overall health and well-being given the child's age and culture. As appropriate, assess the following elements:

- (i) Gross and fine motor development;
- (ii) Communication skills, language and speech development;
- (iii) Self-help, self-care skills;
- (iv) Social-emotional development;
- (v) Cognitive skills;
- (vi) Visual-motor skills;
- (vii) Learning disabilities;
- (viii) Psychological/psychiatric problems;
- (ix) Peer relations; and
- (x) Vocational skills.

(B) **Assessment of nutritional status.** Nutritional assessment may include preventive treatment and follow-up services including dietary counseling and nutrition education if

appropriate. This is accomplished in the basic examination through:

- (i) Questions about dietary practices;
- (ii) Complete physical examination, including an oral dental examination;
- (iii) Height and weight measurements;
- (iv) Laboratory test for iron deficiency; and
- (v) Serum cholesterol screening, if feasible and appropriate.

(2) **Comprehensive unclothed physical examination.** Comprehensive unclothed physical examination includes the following:

(A) **Physical growth.** Record and compare height and weight with those considered normal for that age. Record head circumference for children under one year of age. Report height and weight over time on a graphic recording sheet.

(B) **Unclothed physical inspection.** Check the general appearance of the child to determine overall health status and detect obvious physical defects. Physical inspection includes an examination of all organ systems such as pulmonary, cardiac, and gastrointestinal.

(3) **Immunizations.** Legislation created the Vaccine for Children Program to be effective October 1, 1994. Vaccines ~~will be~~ are provided free of charge to all enrolled providers for ~~Medicaid~~ SoonerCare eligible children. Participating providers may bill for an administration fee ~~to be~~ set by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS), formerly known as HCFA on a regional basis. They may not refuse to immunize based on inability to pay the administration fee.

(4) **Appropriate laboratory tests.** A blood lead screening test (by either finger stick or venipuncture) must be performed between the ages of nine and 12 months and at 24 months. A blood lead test is required for any child up to age 72 months who had not been previously screened. A blood lead test equal to or greater than 10 micrograms per deciliter (ug/dL) obtained by capillary specimen (fingerstick) must be confirmed using a venous blood sample. If a child is found to have blood lead levels equal to or greater than 10 ug/dL, the Oklahoma Childhood Lead Poison Prevention Program (OCLPPP) must be notified according to rules set forth by the Oklahoma State Board of Health (OAC 310:512-3-5).

(A) The OCLPPP schedules an environmental inspection to identify the source of the lead for children who have a persistent blood lead level 15 ug/dL or greater. Environmental inspections are provided through the Oklahoma State Department of Health (OSDH) upon notification from laboratories or providers and reimbursed through the OSDH cost allocation plan approved by OHCA.

(B) Medical judgment is used in determining the applicability

of all other laboratory tests or analyses to be performed unless otherwise indicated on the periodicity schedule. If any laboratory tests or analyses are medically contraindicated at the time of the screening, they are provided when no longer medically contraindicated. Laboratory tests should only be given when medical judgment determines they are appropriate. However, laboratory tests should not be routinely administered. General procedures including immunizations and lab tests, such as blood lead, are outlined in the periodicity schedule found at OAC 317:30-3-65.2.

(5) **Health education.** Health education is a required component of screening services and includes anticipatory guidance. At the outset, the physical and dental assessment, or screening, gives the initial context for providing health education. Health education and counseling to parents, guardians or children is required. It is designed to assist in understanding expectations of the child's development and provide information about the benefits of healthy lifestyles and practices as well as accident and disease prevention.

(6) **Vision and hearing screens.** Vision and hearing services are subject to their own periodicity schedules. However, age-appropriate vision and hearing assessments may be performed as a part of the screening as outlined in the periodicity schedule found at OAC 317:30-3-65.7 and 317:30-3-65.9.

(7) **Dental screening services.** An oral dental examination may be included in the screening and as a part of the nutritional status assessment. Federal regulations require a direct dental referral for every child in accordance with the periodicity schedule and at other intervals as medically necessary. Therefore, when an oral examination is done at the time of the screening, the child may be referred directly to a dentist for further screening and/or treatment. Specific dental services are outlined in OAC 317:30-3-65.8.

(8) **Child abuse.** Instances of child abuse and/or neglect discovered through screenings and regular examinations are to be reported in accordance with State Law. Section 7103 of Title 10 of the Oklahoma Statutes mandates reporting suspected abuse or neglect to the Oklahoma Department of Human Services. Section 7104 of Title 10 of the Oklahoma Statutes further requires reporting of criminally injurious conduct to the nearest law enforcement agency. Title 21, Oklahoma Statutes, Section 846, as amended, states in part: "Every physician or surgeon, including doctors of medicine and dentistry, licensed osteopathic physicians, residents, and interns, examining, attending, or treating a child under the age of 18 years and every registered nurse examining, attending or treating such a child in the absence of a physician or surgeon, and every other person having reason to believe that a child under the age of 18

~~years has had physical injury or injuries inflicted upon him or her by other than accidental means where the injury appears to have been caused as a result of physical abuse or neglect, shall report the matter promptly to the county office of the Department of Human Services in the county wherein the suspected injury occurred. Providing it shall be a misdemeanor for any person to knowingly and willfully fail to promptly report an incident as provided above". Persons reporting such incidents of abuse and/or neglect in accordance with the law are exempt from prosecution in civil or criminal suits that might be brought solely as a result of the filing of the report.~~

**SUBCHAPTER 5. INDIVIDUAL PROVIDERS AND SPECIALTIES**  
**PART 1. PHYSICIANS**

**317:30-5-2. General coverage by category**

(a) **Adults.** Payment for adults is made to physicians for medical and surgical services within the scope of the Oklahoma Health Care Authority's (OHCA's) ~~medical programs~~ SoonerCare program, provided the services are reasonable and necessary for the diagnosis and treatment of illness or injury, or to improve the functioning of a malformed body member. Coverage of certain services must be based on a determination made by the OHCA's medical consultant in individual circumstances.

(1) Coverage includes the following medically necessary services:

(A) Inpatient hospital visits for all SoonerCare covered stays. All inpatient services are subject to post-payment review by the OHCA, or its designated agent.

(B) Inpatient psychotherapy by a physician.

(C) Inpatient psychological testing by a physician.

(D) One inpatient visit per day, per physician.

(E) Certain surgical procedures performed in a Medicare certified free-standing ambulatory surgicenter or a Medicare certified hospital that offers outpatient surgical services. Refer to the List of Covered Surgical Procedures.

(F) Therapeutic radiology or chemotherapy on an outpatient basis without limitation to the number of treatments per month for members with proven malignancies or opportunistic infections.

(G) Direct physician services on an outpatient basis. A maximum of four visits are allowed per month per member in office or home regardless of the number of physicians providing treatment. Additional visits per month are allowed for those services related to emergency medical conditions and for services in connection with Family Planning.

(H) Direct physician services in a nursing facility for those members residing in a long-term care facility. A maximum of

two nursing facility visits per month are allowed. To receive payment for a second nursing facility visit in a month denied by Medicare for a Medicare/SoonerCare patient, attach the EOMB from Medicare showing denial and mark "carrier denied coverage".

(I) Diagnostic x-ray and laboratory services.

(J) Mammography screening and additional follow-up mammograms.

(K) Obstetrical care.

(L) Pacemakers and prostheses inserted during the course of a surgical procedure.

(M) Prior authorized examinations for the purpose of determining medical eligibility for programs ~~under the jurisdiction of the Authority administered by OHCA~~. A copy of the authorization, OKDHS form ~~ABCDM-16~~ 08MA016E, Authorization for Examination and Billing, must accompany the claim.

(N) If a physician renders direct care to a member on the same day as a dialysis treatment, payment is allowed for a separately identifiable service unrelated to the dialysis.

(O) Family planning includes sterilization procedures for legally competent members 21 years of age and over who voluntarily request such a procedure and, ~~executes~~ execute the federally mandated consent form with his/her physician. A copy of the consent form must be attached to the claim form. Separate payment is allowed for I.U.D. insertion during an office visit. Certain family planning products may be obtained through the Vendor Drug Program. Reversal of sterilization procedures for the purposes of conception is not allowed. Reversal of sterilization procedures are allowed when medically indicated and substantiating documentation is attached to the claim.

(P) Genetic counseling (requires special medical review prior to approval).

(Q) Weekly blood counts for members receiving the drug Clozaril.

(R) Complete blood count (CBC) and platelet count prior to receiving chemotherapeutic agents, radiation therapy or medication such as DPA-D-Penicillamine on a regular basis for treatment other than for malignancy.

(S) Payment for ultrasounds for pregnant women as specified in OAC 317:30-5-22.

(T) Payment to the attending physician in a teaching medical facility for compensable services when the physician signs as claimant and renders personal and identifiable services to the member in conformity with federal regulations.

(U) Payment to clinical fellow or chief resident in an outpatient academic setting when the following conditions are

met:

- (i) Recognition as clinical faculty with participation in such activities as faculty call, faculty meetings, and having hospital privileges;
- (ii) Board certification or completion of an accredited residency program in the fellowship specialty area;
- (iii) Hold unrestricted license to practice medicine in Oklahoma;
- (iv) If Clinical Fellow, practicing during second or subsequent year of fellowship;
- (v) Seeing members without supervision;
- (vi) Services provided not for primary purpose of medical education for the clinical fellow or chief resident;
- (vii) Submit billing in own name with appropriate Oklahoma SoonerCare provider number.
- (viii) Additionally, if a clinical fellow practicing during the first year of fellowship, the clinical fellow must be practicing within their area of primary training. The services must be performed within the context of their primary specialty and only to the extent as allowed by their accrediting body.

(V) Payment to the attending physician for the services of a currently Oklahoma licensed physician in training when the following conditions are met.

- (i) Attending physician performs chart review and sign off on the billed encounter;
- (ii) Attending physician present in the clinic/or hospital setting and available for consultation;
- (iii) Documentation of written policy and applicable training of physicians in the training program regarding when to seek the consultation of the attending physician.

(W) Payment to the attending physician for the outpatient services of an unlicensed physician in a training program when the following conditions are met:

- (i) The member must be at least minimally examined by the attending physician or a licensed physician under the supervision of the attending physician;
- (ii) The contact must be documented in the medical record.

(X) Payment to a physician for supervision of CRNA services unless the CRNA bills directly.

(Y) One pap smear per year for women of child bearing age. Two follow-up pap smears are covered when medically indicated.

(Z) Medically necessary solid organ and bone marrow/stem cell transplantation services for children and ~~adult~~ adults are covered services based upon the conditions listed in (i)-(iv) of this subparagraph:

- (i) Transplant procedures, except kidney and cornea, must

be prior authorized to be compensable.

(ii) To be prior authorized all procedures are reviewed based on appropriate medical criteria.

(iii) To be compensable under the SoonerCare program, all organ transplants must be performed at a facility which meets the requirements contained in Section 1138 of the Social Security Act.

(iv) Procedures considered experimental or investigational are not covered.

(AA) Donor search and procurement services are covered for transplants consistent with the methods used by the Medicare program for organ acquisition costs.

(i) Donor expenses incurred for complications are covered only if they are directly and immediately attributable to the donation procedure.

(ii) Donor expenses that occur after the 90 day global reimbursement period must be submitted to the OHCA for review.

(BB) Total parenteral nutritional therapy (TPN) for identified diagnoses and when prior authorized.

(CC) Ventilator equipment.

(DD) Home dialysis equipment and supplies.

(EE) Ambulatory services for treatment of members with tuberculosis (TB). This includes, but is not limited to, physician visits, outpatient hospital services, rural health clinic visits and prescriptions. Drugs prescribed for the treatment of TB not listed in OAC 317:30-3-46 beyond the prescriptions covered under SoonerCare require prior authorization by the University of Oklahoma College of Pharmacy Help Desk using form "Petition for TB Related Therapy". Ambulatory services to members infected with TB are not limited to the scope of the SoonerCare program, but require prior authorization when the scope is exceeded.

(FF) Smoking and Tobacco Use Cessation Counseling for treatment of individuals using tobacco.

(i) Smoking and Tobacco Use Cessation Counseling consists of the 5As:

(I) Asking the member to describe their smoking use;

(II) Advising the member to quit;

(III) Assessing the willingness of the member to quit;

(IV) Assisting the member with referrals and plans to quit; and

(V) Arranging for follow-up.

(ii) Up to eight sessions are covered per year per individual.

(iii) Smoking and Tobacco Use Cessation Counseling is a covered service when performed by physicians, physician assistants, advanced registered nurse practitioners,

certified nurse midwives, dentists, and Oklahoma State Health Department and FQHC nursing staff. It is reimbursed in addition to any other appropriate global payments for obstetrical care, PCP ~~capitation~~ care coordination payments, evaluation and management codes, or other appropriate services rendered. It must be a significant, separately identifiable service, unique from any other service provided on the same day.

(iv) Chart documentation must include a separate note and signature along with the member specific information addressed in the five steps and the time spent by the practitioner performing the counseling. Anything under three minutes is considered part of a routine visit.

(GG) Immunizations as specified by the Advisory Committee on Immunization Practices (ACIP) guidelines.

(2) General coverage exclusions include the following:

(A) Inpatient diagnostic studies that could be performed on an outpatient basis.

(B) Services or any expense incurred for cosmetic surgery.

(C) Services of two physicians for the same type of service to the same member at the same time, except when warranted by the necessity of supplemental skills. When supplemental skills are warranted, the initial consultation is reported utilizing the appropriate CPT code for inpatient consultations. Follow-up consultations include monitoring progress, recommending management modifications or advising on a new plan of care in response to changes in the member's status. If the consultant physician initiates treatment at the initial consultation and participates thereafter in the member's care, the procedure codes for subsequent hospital care must be used.

(D) Refractions and visual aids.

(E) A separate payment for pre-operative care, if provided on the day before or the day of surgery, or for typical post-operative follow-up care.

(F) Payment to the same physician for both an outpatient visit and admission to hospital on the same date.

(G) Sterilization of members who are under 21 years of age, mentally incompetent, or institutionalized or reversal of sterilization procedures for the purposes of conception.

(H) Non-therapeutic hysterectomy.

(I) Medical services considered ~~to be~~ experimental or investigational.

(J) Payment for more than four outpatient visits per month (home or office) per member except those visits in connection with family planning, or related to emergency medical conditions.

(K) Payment for more than two nursing facility visits per



month.

(L) More than one inpatient visit per day per physician.

(M) Physician supervision of hemodialysis or peritoneal dialysis.

(N) Physician services which are administrative in nature and not a direct service to the member including such items as quality assurance, utilization review, treatment staffing, tumor board review or multidisciplinary opinion, dictation, and similar functions.

(O) Charges for completion of insurance forms, abstracts, narrative reports or telephone calls.

(P) Payment for the services of physicians' assistants, social workers, licensed family counselors, registered nurses or other ancillary staff, except as specifically set out in OHCA rules.

(Q) Induced abortions, except when certified in writing by a physician that the abortion was necessary due to a physical disorder, injury, or illness related to a life-endangering physical condition caused by or arising from the pregnancy itself, that would place the woman in danger of death unless an abortion is performed, or when the pregnancy is the result of an act of rape or incest. (Refer to OAC 317:30-5-6 or 317:30-5-50.)

(R) Night calls ~~or unusual hours~~.

(S) Speech and Hearing services.

(T) Mileage.

(U) A routine hospital visit on the date of discharge unless the member expired.

(V) Direct payment to perfusionist as this is considered part of the hospital reimbursement.

(W) Inpatient chemical dependency treatment.

(X) Fertility treatment.

(Y) Payment for removal of benign skin lesions unless medically necessary.

(b) **Children.** Payment is made to physicians for medical and surgical services for members under the age of 21 within the scope of the Authority's ~~medical programs~~ SoonerCare program, provided the services are medically necessary for the diagnosis and treatment of illness or injury, or to improve the functioning of a malformed body member. Medical and surgical services for children are comparable to those listed for adults. In addition to those services listed for adults, the following services are covered for children.

(1) **Pre-authorization of inpatient psychiatric services.** All inpatient psychiatric services for members under 21 years of age must be prior authorized by an agency designated by the Oklahoma Health Care Authority. All psychiatric services are prior authorized for an approved length of stay. Non-authorized

inpatient psychiatric services are not SoonerCare compensable.

(A) Effective October 1, 1993, all residential and acute psychiatric services are authorized based on the medical necessity criteria as described in OAC 317:30-5-95.25, 317:30-5-95.27 and 317:30-5-95.29.

(B) Out of state placements ~~will~~ are not ~~be~~ authorized unless it is determined that the needed medical services are more readily available in another state or it is a general practice for members in a particular border locality to use resources in another state. If a medical emergency occurs while a member is out of the State, treatment for medical services is covered as if provided within the State. A prime consideration for placements ~~will be~~ is proximity to the family or guardian in order to involve the family or guardian in discharge and reintegration planning.

(2) **General acute care inpatient service limitations.** All general acute care inpatient hospital services for members under the age of 21 are not limited. All inpatient care must be medically necessary.

(3) **Procedures for requesting extensions for inpatient services.** The physician and/or facility must provide necessary justification to enable OHCA, or its designated agent, to make a determination of medical necessity and appropriateness of treatment options. Extension requests for psychiatric admissions must be submitted to the OHCA or its designated agent. Extension requests must contain the appropriate documentation validating the need for continued treatment in accordance with the medical necessity criteria described in OAC 317:30-5-95.26, 317:30-5-95.28 and 317:30-5-95.30. Requests must be made prior to the expiration of the approved inpatient stay. All decisions of OHCA or its designated agent are final.

(4) **Utilization control requirements for psychiatric beds.** Utilization control requirements for inpatient psychiatric services for members under 21 years of age apply to all hospitals and residential psychiatric treatment facilities.

(5) **Early and periodic screening diagnosis and treatment program.** Payment is made to eligible providers for Early and Periodic Screening, Diagnosis, and Treatment (EPSDT) of members under age 21. These services include medical, dental, vision, hearing and other necessary health care. Refer to OAC 317:30-3-65.2 through 317:30-3-65.11 for specific guidelines.

(6) **Child abuse/neglect findings.** Instances of child abuse and/or neglect discovered through screenings and regular exams are to be reported in accordance with State Law. Section 7103 of Title 10 of the Oklahoma Statutes mandates reporting suspected abuse or neglect to the Oklahoma Department of Human Services. Section 7104 of Title 10 of the Oklahoma Statutes

~~further requires reporting of criminally injurious conduct to the nearest law enforcement agency. Title 21, Oklahoma Statutes, Section 846, as amended, states in part: Every physician or surgeon, including doctors of medicine and dentistry, licensed osteopathic physicians, residents, and interns, examining, attending, or treating a child under the age of eighteen (18) years and every registered nurse examining, attending or treating such a child in the absence of a physician or surgeon, and every other person having reason to believe that a child under the age of eighteen (18) years has had physical injury or injuries inflicted upon him or her by other than accidental means where the injury appears to have been caused as a result of physical abuse or neglect, shall report the matter promptly to the county office of the Department of Human Services in the county wherein the suspected injury occurred. Providing it shall be a misdemeanor for any person to knowingly and willfully fail to promptly report an incident as provided above. Persons reporting such incidents of abuse and/or neglect in accordance with the law are exempt from prosecution in civil or criminal suits that might be brought as a result of the report.~~

(7) **General exclusions.** The following are excluded from coverage for members under the age of 21:

(A) Inpatient diagnostic studies that could be performed on an outpatient basis.

(B) Services or any expense incurred for cosmetic surgery unless the physician certifies the procedure emotionally necessary.

(C) Services of two physicians for the same type of service to the same member at the same time, except when warranted by the necessity of supplemental skills. When supplemental skills are warranted, the initial consultation is reported utilizing the appropriate CPT code for inpatient consultations. Follow-up consultations include monitoring progress, recommending management modifications or advising on a new plan of care in response to changes in the member's status. If the consultant physician initiates treatment at the initial consultation and participates thereafter in the member's care, the codes for subsequent hospital care must be used.

(D) A separate payment for pre-operative care, if provided on the day before or the day of surgery, or for typical post-operative follow-up care.

(E) Payment to the same physician for both an outpatient visit and admission to hospital on the same date.

(F) Sterilization of persons who are under 21 years of age.

(G) Non-therapeutic hysterectomy.

(H) Medical Services considered ~~to be~~ experimental or

investigational.

(I) More than one inpatient visit per day per physician.

(J) Induced abortions, except when certified in writing by a physician that the abortion was necessary due to a physical disorder, injury or illness, including a life-endangering physical condition caused by or arising from the pregnancy itself, that would place the woman in danger of death unless an abortion is performed, or that the pregnancy is the result of an act of rape or incest. (Refer to OAC 317:30-5-6 or 317:30-5-50.)

(K) Physician supervision of hemodialysis or peritoneal dialysis.

(L) Physician services which are administrative in nature and not a direct service to the member including such items as quality assurance, utilization review, treatment staffing, tumor board review or multidisciplinary opinion, dictation, and similar functions.

(M) Payment for the services of physicians' assistants except as specifically set out in OHCA rules.

(N) Direct payment to perfusionist as this is considered part of the hospital reimbursement.

(O) Charges for completion of insurance forms, abstracts, narrative reports or telephone calls.

(P) Night calls ~~or unusual hours~~.

(Q) Mileage.

(R) A routine hospital visit on date of discharge unless the member expired.

(S) Tympanometry.

(c) **Individuals eligible for Part B of Medicare.** Payment is made utilizing the OHCA allowable for comparable services. Claims filed with Medicare Part B should automatically cross over to OHCA. The explanation of Medicare Benefits (EOMB) reflects a message that the claim was referred to SoonerCare. If such a message is not present, a claim for coinsurance and deductible must be filed with the OHCA within 90 days of the date of Medicare payment or within one year of the date of service in order to be considered timely filed.

(1) In certain circumstances, some claims do not automatically "cross over". Providers must file a claim for coinsurance and/or deductible to SoonerCare within 90 days of the Medicare payment or within one year from the date of service.

(2) If payment was denied by Medicare Part B and the service is a SoonerCare covered service, mark the claim "denied by Medicare" and attach the Medicare EOMB showing the reason for the denial.

### **PART 3. HOSPITALS**

### **317:30-5-49. Child abuse**

(a) Instances of child abuse and/or neglect are to be reported in accordance with State Law. Section 7103 of Title 10 of the Oklahoma Statutes mandates reporting suspected abuse or neglect to the Oklahoma Department of Human Services. Section 7104 of Title 10 of the Oklahoma Statutes further requires reporting of criminally injurious conduct to the nearest law enforcement agency. Title 21, Oklahoma Statutes, Section 846, as amended, states in part; every physician or surgeon, including doctors of medicine and dentistry, licensed osteopathic physicians, residents and interns, examining, attending, or treating a child under the age of eighteen (18) years and every registered nurse examining, attending or treating such a child in the absence of a physician or surgeon, and every other person having reason to believe that a child under the age of eighteen (18) years has had physical injury or injuries inflicted upon him or her by other than accidental means where the injury appears to have been caused as a result of physical abuse or neglect, shall report the matter promptly to the county office of the Department of Human Services in the county wherein the suspected injury occurred. Provided it shall be a misdemeanor for any person to knowingly and willfully fail to promptly report an incident as provided above. Persons reporting such incidents of abuse and/or neglect in accordance with the law are exempt from prosecution in civil or criminal suits that might be brought as a result of the report.

(b) Each hospital must designate a person, or persons, within the facility who is responsible for reporting suspected instances of medical neglect, including instances of withholding of medically indicated treatment (including appropriate nutrition, hydration and medication) from disabled infants with life-threatening conditions. The hospital must report the name of the individual so designated to this agency, which is responsible for administering this provision within the State of Oklahoma. The hospital administrator ~~will be~~ is assumed to be the contact person unless someone else is specifically designated.

(c) The Child Abuse Unit of the Oklahoma Child Welfare Unit ~~will be~~ is responsible for coordination and consultation with the individual designated. In turn, the hospital is responsible for prompt notification to the Child Abuse Unit of any case of suspected medical neglect or withholding of medically-indicated treatment from disabled infants with life-threatening conditions. This information must be communicated to Child Abuse Unit, Child Welfare Services, P.O. Box 25352, Oklahoma City, OK 73125, Telephone: (405) 521-2283. Should a report need to be made when the office is closed, telephone the statewide toll-free Child Abuse Hot Line: 1-800-522-3511.

(d) Each Hospital should provide the name, title and telephone number of the designated individual and return it to the OHCA. This information ~~will be~~ is updated annually as part of the contract

renewal. Should the designation change before that time, OHCA should be furnished revised information.

## **PART 6. INPATIENT PSYCHIATRIC HOSPITALS**

### **317:30-5-97. Child abuse**

(a) Instances of child abuse and/or neglect are to be reported in accordance with State Law. Section 7103 of Title 10 of the Oklahoma Statutes mandates reporting suspected abuse or neglect to the Oklahoma Department of Human Services. Section 7104 of Title 10 of the Oklahoma Statutes further requires reporting of criminally injurious conduct to the nearest law enforcement agency. Title 21, Oklahoma Statutes, Section 846, as amended, states in part; every physician or surgeon, including doctors of medicine and dentistry, licensed osteopathic physicians, residents and interns, examining, attending, or treating a child under the age of eighteen (18) years and every registered nurse examining, attending or treating such a child in the absence of a physician or surgeon, and every other person having reason to believe that a child under the age of eighteen (18) years has had physical injury or injuries inflicted upon him or her by other than accidental means where the injury appears to have been caused as a result of physical abuse or neglect, shall report the matter promptly to the county office of the Department of Human Services in the county wherein the suspected injury occurred. Provided it shall be a misdemeanor for any person to knowingly and willfully fail to promptly report an incident as provided above. Persons reporting such incidents of abuse and/or neglect in accordance with the law are exempt from prosecution in civil or criminal suits that might be brought as a result of the report.

(b) Each hospital must designate a person, or persons, within the facility who is responsible for reporting suspected instances of medical neglect, including instances of withholding of medically indicated treatment (including appropriate nutrition, hydration and medication) from disabled infants with life-threatening conditions. The hospital must report the name of the individual so designated to this agency, which is responsible for administering this provision within the State of Oklahoma. The hospital administrator ~~will be~~ is assumed to be the contact person unless someone else is specifically designated.

(c) The Child Abuse Unit of the Oklahoma Child Welfare Unit ~~will be~~ is responsible for coordination and consultation with the individual designated. In turn, the hospital is responsible for prompt notification to the Child Abuse Unit of any case of suspected medical neglect or withholding of medically-indicated treatment.

## **PART 103. QUALIFIED SCHOOLS AS PROVIDERS OF**

## HEALTH RELATED SERVICES

### 317:30-5-1026. Reporting of suspected child abuse/neglect

Instances of child abuse and/or neglect discovered through screenings and regular examinations are to be reported in accordance with State law. Section 7103 of Title 10 of the Oklahoma Statutes mandates reporting suspected abuse or neglect to the Oklahoma Department of Human Services. Section 7104 of Title 10 of the Oklahoma Statutes further requires reporting of criminally injurious conduct to the nearest law enforcement agency. Title 21, Oklahoma Statutes, Section 846, as amended, states in part: "Every physician or surgeon, including doctors of medicine and dentistry, licensed osteopathic physicians, residents, and interns, examining, attending, or treating a child under the age of 18 years and every registered nurse examining, attending or treating such a child in the absence of a physician or surgeon, and every other person having reason to believe that a child under the age of 18 years has had physical injury or injuries inflicted upon him or her by other than accidental means where the injury appears to have been caused as a result of physical abuse or neglect, shall report the matter promptly to the county office of the Department of Human Services in the county wherein the suspected injury occurred. Providing it shall be a misdemeanor for any person to knowingly and willfully fail to promptly report an incident as provided above." Persons reporting such incidents of abuse and/or neglect in accordance with the law are exempt from prosecution in civil or criminal suits that might be brought solely as a result of the filing of the report.